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File No. 20 -0002

[X] This SUBPOENA/SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM To PERSON UNDER FOREIGN SUBPOENA is being served by a private
process server who must provide proof of service in accordance with Va. Code § 8.01-325.

TO the person âütherized to serve this process: Upon execution, the return of this process shall be made to the
Clerk of Court.

NAME: ................ Û .Û.Û.. . ......... . Û Û .Û.........................................................................................................................

ADDRESS: ...... ..... .Û. ... .. . . .Û........ ......... ............. . . ..........................................................................

I
Tel

[ ] PERSONAL SERVICE

Being unable to make personal service, a copy was delivered in the following manner:

] Delivered to family member (not temporary sojourner or guest) age 16 or older at usual place of abode of

party named above after giving information of its purport List name, age of recipient, and relation of
recipient to party named above:

.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

[ ] Posted on front door or such other door as appears to be the main entrance of usual place of abode, address
listed above. (Other authorized recipient not found.)

............................................................................................................................, Sheriff

........................................ by ....................................................,,.............................................................,, Deputy Sheriff.
DATE

. .

JOHN T. FREY, CLERK

FAIRFAX COUNTY ClRCUlT COURT

4110 CHAIN BRIDGE ROAD

FAIRFAX, VlRGIN1A 22030

FORMCC-1439(MASTER,PAGETHREEOFTHREE)07/09
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SUBPOENA/SUBPOENA DUCES TECUM File No. ..201 002 1

TO PERSON UNDER FOREIGN SUBPOENA
Cou,mon wealth of Virginia VA CODE §§ 8.01-412.8-8.01-412.15; Rule 4:9

. .CO .................................................................................................Circuit Court

4110 Chain Bridge Road, 3rd Floor, Fairfax, VA 22030...................................................................................................................... ... . .................................................................... ............. ...............

JOHN C. DEPP, II e. AMBER LAURA HEARD 20 --
a

TO THE PERSON AUTHORIZED BY LAW TO SERVE THIS PROCESS C co 5
You are commanded to summon

> o -I N :-

Anthony Romero Mr; y,

8 Brindlerun Ct. Ê<

East Hampton NY 11937. ...................................................................................................................................................... ................................................... ........ ... . ..

TO THE PERSON SUMMONED: You are commanded to

[X] attend and give testimony at a deposition

[ ] produce the books, documents, records, electronically stored information, and tangible things designated and

described below

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................
....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

at Bfown Rudnick P, imes S uare, New ork, N 10036......................... at ...............M8.rch 2021a 9 30 a m
LOCATION DATEANDTIME

and to permit inspection and copying by the requesting party or someone acting in his or her behalf of the

designated items in your possession, custody or control

[ ] permit inspection of the premises

at the following location

........................................................................................................................... . . . . . ....................................................................................................................

On ......................................................................................................
DATEANDTIME

This subpoena is issued upon the request of the party named below

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II

c/o Benjamin G. Chew, Brown Rudnick LLP, 601 13th Street NW, Suite 600.......................................................................................................... .. . ................----.................................---...........................----..............

Washington D.C. 20005 202-536-1785
... . .................................................................. . .......................................................... ....... .................................... . .....

FORMCC-1439(MASTER,PAGEONEOFTHREE)07/09
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File No. ..20 0002

The requesting party has subrsitted to this Clerk's Office the foreign subpoena, copy attached, the terms of which are

incorporated herein, and the written staterñêñt required by Virginia Code § 8.01-412.10.

The names, addresses and telephone numbers of all counsel of record in the proceeding to which the subpacña relates

and of parties not represented by counsel are provided [ ] below [×] on attached list.

JOHN T. FREY, CLERK
D SSUED CL K

DEPUTYCLERK

Benjamin G. Chew 29113 VA

601 13th Street NW, Suite 600 202-536-1785............................................... .. .. . . . . .............................................. .................................. . . . .. . . ................................

Washington, D.C. 20005 202-536-1701

...................................................... ....................................................... .................. . . . .................... ..... . . . ..........

RETURN OF SERVICE (see page three of this form)

A COPY TESTE:

JOHN T. FREY, CLERK

BY: 0 ks5UA) h·
e aty Clerk

FORMCC-1439(MASTER,PAGETWOOFTHREE)07/09 Date: 4
Original retained in he office ef .
the Clerk of the Circuit Court of
Fairfax County; Virena
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CL-2019-000291 I

The names, addresses and telcphóñ: numbemof all counsel of record in the precssding to which
the -atpacr.a relates and of parties not represented by counsel are:

B %fti:f Gi lye)vi(V ŠB No. 25til¾)
Ali w C, Cr$W@td (V5B No. 3)
RROWN RUDNICK LLP
601 Thirteenth Street, N.W., Suite 600

Washington, D.C. 20005
Telephone: (202) 536-1700
Facsimile: (202) 536-1701

'

Camille M. Vasquez (pro hac vice)
BROWNRUDNICK LLP
2211 Miphelson Drive
Seventh Floor .
Irvine, CA.92612
Telephone: (949) 752-7100
Facsimilea

(949) 252-1514

Coúnsel f br Plaint{( John C. Depp, II
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CL-2019-0002911

EpppEsftenborn (VSB Ng 84796)
Joshu5ll Tféé#e (VSBNo.79149)
WOODS ROGERSPLC

10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400

P.O. Box 14125

Roanoke, VA24011

Telephone: (540)983-7540
brottenborn@woodsrogers.com
treece@woodsrogers.com

Elaine Charlson Bredchoft (VSB No. 23766)

Chrla D. Bro yn (VSB No. 44803)
Adam S. Nadelha ft (V SB No. 91717)
David 13.Mui phy (VSB No. 90938)
Charlson Biedehoû Cohen & Blown, P.C.

1 I 260 Roger Bacon Drive, Suite 201

Reston, VA 20190
Telephone: (703) 318-6800

raer.hr.ila: (703) 318-6808
ebredehoft@cbcblaw.com
cbrown@cbchlaw.com
anadelhaft@cbcblaw.com
dmurphy@cbcblaw.com

Counsel fbr Defendant Amber Laura Heard

2
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SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
COUNTY OF NEW YORK

John C. Depp, II, ORIGINIATING STATE:

THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

Plaintiff,
ORIGINATING COURT:

v. CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUNTY

Amber Laura Heard, ORIGINATING CASE NUMBER:
Case No. CL-2019-02911

Defendant.

SUBPOENA AD TESTIFICANDUM AND
DUCES TECUM PURSUANT TO CPLR
3119

To: Anthony Romero, 8 Brindlerun Ct., East Hampton, NY 11937

YOU ARE HEREBY COMMANDED, pursuant to Section 3119 of the New York Civil

Practice Law and Rules ("CPLR"), all business and excuses being laid aside, to appear and attend,

before a duly commissioned notary public of the State of New York, or some other person duly

qualified under the laws of the State of New York to administer oaths, at the law offices of Brown

Rudnick LLP, 7 Times Square, New York, New York 10036, on March 10, 2021, at 9:30 a.m. ET,

and at recessed or adjourned date, to give testimony. This deposition will be recorded by

stenographic means. Plaintiff reserves the right.to record the testimony by audio or visual means.

YOU ARE FURTHER COMMANDED, pursuant to Section 3119 of the CPLR, all

business and excused being laid aside, to produce, or make available for copying, on or before

March 1, 2021, at the offices of Brown Rudnick LLP, 7 Times Square, New York, New York,

10036, or by e-mail to Jessica N. Meyers (jmeyers@browñrüdñick.com), true and correct copies

of all documents requested in Exhibit A hereto, that are in your possession, custody, or control,

which documents are material and relevant to the resolution of the issues in the above-captioned

FILED: NEW YORK COUNTY CLERK 05/10/2021 03:53 PM INDEX NO. 154545/2021

NYSCEF DOC. NO. 26 RECEIVED NYSCEF: 05/10/2021



matter, which is now pending in the Circuit Court of the Commonwealth of Virginia, Fairfax

County. If you wish to make your production in person, please call Jessica Meyers at (212) 209-

4938 at least 72 hours in advance to make arrangemcñts.

The discovery herein sought and required is in connection with the claims and defenses in

the above-captioned action. A copy of the Complaint in this action is attached hereto as Exhibit

B.

FAILURE TO COMPLY with this SUBPOENA is püñishable as a contempt of Court

and shall make you liable to the person on whose behalf this subpoena was issued for a penalty

not to exceed one hundred and fifty dollars and all dainages sustained by reason of your failure to

comply.

COUNSEL OF RECORD FOR ALL PARTIES

Benjamin G. Chew, Esq. (VSB 29113) Counsel for John C. Depp, 11

Andrew Crawford (VSB No. 89093)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

601 Thirteenth Street, NW
Washington, DC 20005

(202) 536-1700

behew@brownrudnick.com

acrawford@,brownrudnick.com

Camille M. Vasquez Counsel for John C. Depp, 11

BROWN RUDNICK LLP

2211 Michelson Drive

Irvine, CA 92612

(949) 752-7100

cvasquez@brownrudnick.com

Elaine Charlson Bredehoft (VSB #23766) Counsel for Amber Laura Heard

Carla D. Brown (VSB #44803)
Adam S. Nadelhaft (VSB #91717)
David E. Murphy (VSB #90938)
CHARLSON BREDEHOFT COHEN &

BROWN, P.C.
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1 1260 Roger Bacon Drive, Suite 201

Reston, VA 20190

(703) 318-6800

ebredehoft@cbcblaw.com

cbrown@cbcblaw.com

anadelhaft@cbcblaw.com

dmurphy@cbcblaw.com

J. Beñjamin Rottenborn (VBS #84796) Counsel for Amber Laura Heard

Joshua R. Treece (VSB #79149)
WOODS ROGERS PLC

10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400

P.O. Box 14125

Roanoke, Virginia 24011

(540) 983-7540

brottenborn@woodsrogers.com

jtreece@woodsrogers.com

Dated: February 1, 2021

New York, New York

BROWN RUDNICK LLP

By: /s/ Jessica N. Meyers

Jessica N. Meyers

7 Times Square

New York, New York 10036

(212) 209-4938

jmeyers@brownrudnick.com

Counsel for John C. Depp, II

. .
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EXH1BIT B
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FILED
ClVll INTAKE

V I ll G I N I A:
IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF FAIRFAX COUltfl6HAR -1 PH 12: 48

) JOHN T. FREY
CLERK. CIRCUlT COURTJohn C. Depp, H, ) FAIRFAX. VA

)
Plaintiff, ) a 9 0 2911

v. ) Civil Acti n 190. .

)
Ambe,r Laura Heard, )

Plaintiff John C. Depp, H, a/k/a Johnny Depp, in support of his Complaint against

Defendet Amber Laura Heard hereby states the füllewing:

1. This dc"=:±r. action arises from an op-ed published in the Wasitingtoñ Post by

actress Amber Heard ("Ms. Heard"). In the op-ed, Ms, Heard paiperted to write from the

perspective of "a publio figure representing domestic abuse" and claimed that she "felt the full

force of our culture's wrath for women who speak out" when she "spoke up against sexual

violence."

2. Although she never identified him by name, the op-ed plainly was about (and

other media cessi !y characterized it as being about) Ms. Heard's purported vic'imiza.n

after she publicly accused her former husband, Johnny Depp ("Mr. Depp"), of acmestic abuse in

2016, when she appcarcd in court with an eppc:cndy battered face and obtained a te... ..

restraining order against Mr. Depp on May 27, 2016. The op-ed depended on the central premise

that Ms. Heard was a domestic abuse victim and that Mr. Depp perpetrated domestic violcace

against her.
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3. The op-ed's clear implicaticñ that Mr. Depp is a domestic abuser is categci;câlly

and d-mh!y false. Mr. Depp never abused Ms. Heard. Her allegatiôñs against him were

false when they were made in 2016. They were part of an elaborate hoax to generate positive

publicity for Ms. Heard and advâñce her career. Ms: IIeard's false aliogations against Mr. Depp

have been conclusively refuted by two separate re-::-'!r;; police officers,.a litany of neutral

third-party witnesses, and 87 newly obtained sarveillance camera videos. With a prior arrest for

violent demeetic abuse and having ponfessed under oath to a series of violent attacks on Mr.

Depp, Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic abuse; she is a perpetrator. Ms. Heard vicicñtly

abused Mr. Depp, just as she was caught and arrested for violently abusing her fonner domestic

partner.
''

4. IVfs. Heard's iinplicaticñ in her op-ed that Mr. Depp is a dom::th a.buser is not

only demonstrably false, it is defemetery per se. Ms. Heard falsely implied that Mr. Depp was

guilty of domestic violence, which is a crime involving moral impitade. Moreover, Ms. Heard's

false imp" *ñ pr:jediced Mr. Depp· in his career as a film actor and incalculebly (and

immadiately) damaged his reputation as a public figure.

S. Unsurprisingly, Mr. Depp's reputation and career were devastated when Ms.

j Heard first accused him of domestic violcñcc on May 27, 2016. Ms. Heard's hoax allegations

were timed to ceincide with the day that Mr. Depp's film, Alice Through the Looking Glass, was

released in theatres. Her op-ed, with its false implisties that she was a victim of domestic

violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, brought new damage to Mr. Depp's n;::1::= and career.

Mr. Depp lost movie roles and faced public scorn. Ms. Heard, an actress herself, knew precisely

the effect that her op-ed would have on Mr. Depp. And indeed, just four days after Ms. Heard's

op-ed was first published on Deccmbcr 18, 2018, Disney emounced on December 22, 2018 that

2
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it was dmpping Mr. Depp from his leading role as Captain Jack Sparrõw-a role that he

created-in the multi ti!!!o: d:!!ar-earning Pirates of the Caribbean franchise.

6. Ms. Heard published her op-ed with actual malice. She knew that Mr. Depp did

not abuse her and that the domestic abuse e!!egations that she made against him in 2016 were

false. She knew that the testimony and photcgmphic "evidence" that she presented to the court

and the suppening sworn testimony ¡:rovided by her two friends were false and perjurious. Ms.

Heard knew that the truth was that she violadly abused Mr. Depp--just as she vicicñtly abused

her prior domestic partner, which led to her arrest and booking for domestic violence, as well as

a night in jail and a mug shot. Ms. Heard revived her false allegations against Mr. Depp in the

op-ed to generate positive publicity for herself and to promote her new movie 2;:::=: , which

premiered across the United States and in Virginia only three days after the op-ed was first

published.

7. Mr. Depp brings this dcfamatics action to clear his name. By this civil lawsuit,

Mr. Depp seeks to restore his sp:±etien·and catablish Ms. Heard's legal liability for cc::

her cãspsigñ to push a false narrative that he committed demeetle violence against her. Mr.

Depp seeks an award of compcñsatery damages for the r:;::::bñ21 harm that he suffered as a

result of Ms. Heard's op-ed, with its false and defamatory fraplication that Mr. Depp was a

Amestic abuser. Further, given the willf..!::ss and ináliciansuess that Ms. Heard dere:±ated

when she knowingly published the op-ed with the false implicatica that Mr. Depp violently

abused her, Mr. Depp also seeks an award of punitive darsages.

PARTIEB

8. Plaintiff John C. Depp is an individual and a resident of the State of Califemia.

For decades, he has been one of the most pmminst actors in Hallywacd. Mr. Depp was married

3
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to Ms. Heard for approximately 15 months between February 1, 2015 and May 23, 2016. They

had no children together. Mr. Depp was the target of Ms. Heard's false and defamstory op-ed in

the Washington Post.

9. Defendant Amber Laura Heard is an individual and a resident of the State of

California. Ms. Heard is an actress and Mr. Depp's former wife. Ms. Heard authored and

published the defametmy op-ed in the Washfugion Post that falsely implied that Mr. Depp

abused her during theii marriage,

IRIáDIdM6NAMD$ENUE

10. This Court has specific persene! jurisdiction over Defendent under Virginia's

long-arm statute, Va. Code § 8.01-328.1, as well as under the Due Process Clause of the U.S.

Cons:!=::an, because, among other things, the causes of action in this C ' -' arise from

Defor.dard transacting business in this C:mn=e-c..';h and causing tortious injury by an act or

cmireion in this C:=::v;::hi. Moreover, exercisiñg jurisdiction would not offend t:±t!ss!

notions of fair play and c±-ª^4=! justice because Defendant could have - indeed should have

- reasonably foreseen being haled into a Virginia court to account for her false and defarsatory

op-ed which was publishe2: in a newspaper that is printed in Springfield, Virginia; in an online

edition of the newspaps that is created on a digital platibrm in Virginia and routed through

servers in Virginia; in a ñcwspapor that has wide circulâtion in Virginia and even publists a

Virginia local edition in which the false and defemato*y op-ed appeared; and in a newspaper that

maintains two physical offices in Virginia. Further, Defeñdâñt pablished the false and

defãmatery op-ed to promote her new movie which was in Virginia theatres for viewing by

Virginia audiences,

4
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11. Venue is proper in this circuit under Va. Code § 8,01-262 because the causes of

action asserted herein arose in this Circuit.

Ms. Heard Wrote An Op Ed Di the)YMlting¾on Post That Implies That She Was A Victim
Of DyistéstlelbugÂt the Hands Of Mr. Depp

, 12. Mr. Depp has appeared in more than 50 films over the last three decades. He has

worldwide name recognition and has played a diverse array of iconic roles, induding Edward

Scissorhands, Willy Wonka, Captain Jack Sparrow, The Mad Hatter, Crisdclwald, John

De!!inger, and Whitey Bulger. His movies have grossed over $10 billion dollars in the United

States and around the world. He has won the People's Choice Award 14 times.

13. Mr. Depp married Ms. Heard on February 1, 2015. The two met when Ms. Heard

was cast in Mr. Depp's film The Rum Diary.

14. The marriage lasted only 15 months.

15, Unbeknewñat to Mr. Depp, no Jater than one month after his marriage to Ms.

Heard, she was spcading time in a new rc'êMë±ip with Tesla and Space-X founder, Elon Musk.

Only one calcñdar month after Mr. Depp and Ms. Heard were married-while Mr. Depp was out

I of the country filming in March 2015-Eastem Cesn±E. Duilding personnel testified that Ms.

Heard received Musk "late at night"
at Mr. Depp's pentheure. Specifically, Ms. Heard asked

i
staff at the Eastem Columbia Building to give her "friend Elon" access to the hailding's parking

garage and the pc.AuúGc elevator "late at night," and they testified that they did so. Building

staff would then see Ms. Heard's "friend Elon"
leaving the haildi.,3 the next mcmiñg. Musk's

first appearance in Mr. Depp's penthcase occurred shortly after Ms. Heard threw a vodka bottle

at Mr, Depp in Australie, when she learned that Mr. Depp wanted the couple to enter into a post-
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nuptial agreemcat ccnccming assets in their marriage. Ms. Heard's vialcutly aimed projcctile

virtually severed Mr. Depp's middle fmger on his right hand and shaticted the bones.

16. Mr. Depp's marriage to Ms. Heard came to an end in May 2016. After Mr. Depp

indicated to Ms. Heard that he wanted to leave the marriage, Ms, IIoard lured Mr. Depp to his

pentheuse to pick up his personal items. Unaware that members of Mr. Depp's security team
.

(4chidicg an 18-year veteran of the Los Angeles County Sherriff's Department) were mere feet

away, Ms. Heard falsely began yelling "stop hitting me Johnny," The interaction culminated

with Ms. Heard making false 5"cgstiens that Mr. Depp struck her with a cell phone, hit her, and

destroyed the penthouse. There were multiple eyevdin 2:es to this hoax. Ms. Heard's friend

then called the police, who arrived promptly. Upon their arrival, Ms, Heard refused to cooperata

with police or make any claims that she had been injured or assaulted, and two domestic abuse

trained police officers testified that after close inspection of Ms. Heard and the ponthcascs, they

observed no injury to Ms. Heard or damage to the pentheuses. But then, six days later, Ms.

Heard presented herself to the world with a battered face as she publicly and falsely accused Mr.

Depp of domestic violence and ebte!ned a restmining order against him, based on false testimony

that she and her friends provided.

17. Now there are newly obtained surveillance camera videos, depositions, and other

evidence that conclusively disprove Ms. Heard's false eliegations. Although much of this

exculpatory evidence was ce!!ected by certain members Mr. Depp's then-legal team in 2016, it

only recently came into Mr. Depp's possessies, as it had been hidden from him for a period of

years.

18. Ms. Heard later withdrew her false demeetle violence allegations and dismissed

the restraining order. She and Mr. Depp finalized their divorce in January 2017.

6
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19. Despite _";_n!r!:g the restraining order and withdrawing the domestic abuse

allegaticñs, Ms. Heard (and her ssic;;;tcs) have centhesey and repeatedly referred to her in

pü'olicãtions, public servico enneunes:ñts, social media postings, speeches, and interYieWs as a

victim of domestic violence, and a "survivor," always with the clear knplicãtion that Mr. Depp

was her supposed abuser. ..

20. Most recently, in December 2018, Ms. Heard published an op-ed in the

W:,:hing!c: Post that falsely implied that Ms. Heard was a victim of domestic violence at the

hands of Mr. Depp, The
op-ed'

was first published on the Washington Post's website on

December 18, 2018 with the title, "Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence - and

faced our culture's wrath. This has to change." The op-ed appened again on December 19,

2018 in the Was|;|;;gic;; Post's hardcopy edition under the title "A Transformative Moment For

Women." Except for their titles, the online and hard copy versions of the op-ed were

-a=Mycly ide-tical and are referred to collectively herein as the "Sexual Violence" op-ed.

21. The "Sexual Violence" op-ed's central thesis was that Ms. Heard was a victim of

domestic violence and faced personal and profess!ene! repereühions because she "spoke up"

against "sexual violence"
by "apowerful man."

22. Although Mr. Depp was never idcatincd by name in the "Sexual Violence"
op-ed,

Ms. Heard makes clear, based on the foundetions of the false acemations that she made against

Mr. Depp in court filings and subseepantly reiterated in the press for years, that she was talking

about Mr. Depp and the domestic abuse a!!egat!ens that she made against him in May 2016. Ms.

Heard wrote:

Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence - and faced our culture's wrath.
That has to change."

7
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!

* "Then two years ago [the precise time frame of her allegations against and divorce
from Mr. Depp], I became a public figure representing domestic abuse, and I felt the
full force of our culture's wrath for women who speak out."

• "I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how iñ;:!t,:!;;s protect men
accused of abuse."

"I write this as a woman who had to cllang4my th@ç ntonbi âøjdy 654uà5IWat
getting death threats. For months, I fái¾ly®È my apartmelk aéd¾lÈhil fdplwag
pursued by camera drones and pho.tugmpgra o oat, on ef oýcles?gt) le ditts.
Tabloid outlets that posted pictures af ñ1s spüñ 11grñ in a pegatiyf.ligle R41Uas
though I was on trial in the court ôf publlt 6tfittibn + und Wr lif4 ggg $y hqç(
depended on myriad judgments far beyond my

control."

23. As these sta*-7 reflect, the whole op-ed proceeds from the notion-presented

as an unassailable tr2th that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic violence at the hands of Mr.

Depp. She was not. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic vicicace, and Mr. Depp is not a

pcip±ator of domestic violence. And the ceñ:erpiece of Ms. Heard's attention-seeking hoax-

her claim that Mr. Depp savagely injured her face by thrcydng her own iPhone at her from point

blank range as hard as he could and then centhñëd to beat her face with other "eppendeges of his

body" on the evening of May 21, 2016, which caused her to have the battered face that she first

presented to the court and the world on May 27, 2016-was a poorly executed lie that

nevertheless has cñdured for nearly three years. The statemania in her "Sexual Violence" op-ed

that imply otherwise are false and defamatory.

Ms. Heard Was Not A Victim Of Domestic Violence: She Was A Perpetrater

24. Long before Ms. Heard became a self-described "public figure representing

acmestic abuse" based on her false domestic violence áEég ties against Mr. Depp, Ms. Heard

was in an abusive reletieship. But Ms. Heard was not the victim in that relationship. She was

the abuser.
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25. On September 14, 2009, police officers at the Seattle-Tacoma Et-±:r!

Airport witnessed Ms. Heard physically assault her thcñ-dcmestic partner, Tasya van Ree. Ms.

Heard grabbed M.S. van Ree by the arm, hit Ms. van Ree in the arm, and yanked Ms. van Ree's

. necklace off her neck. Ms. Heard was arrested. She was booked for miedemeaner domestic

violence, a mug shot was taken of her, and she spent the night in jail. The â!!c .4 day, the

Seattle-based prese z declined to press charges against Ms. Heard, but only because both she

and her demer.ic abuse victim were California residents who were merely passing through

Washington state.

26. Since casting herself as a domestic abuse victim, Ms. Heard has ;‡::=p::d to

blame misagyñy and hcc:;i:t!a for her domestic violence arrest-claimiñg that she was

anested "on a trumped up
charge" because she was in a same-sex re!:ª°::±!;. In truth, the

police officer who arrested Ms. Heard for domestie violenee was both a woman and a lesbian

activist, who publicly said so after she was publicly disparaged by Ms. Heard.

27. Ms. Heard's violent domestic abuse did not end when her relationship with Ms.

van Ree ended. Ms. Heard committed multiple acts of acre:8 violcace against Mr. Depp

during their marriage. Ms. Heard's physical abuse of Mr. Depp is dvv-ov tcd by cycvhe

accGüats, photographs, and even Ms. Heard's own admissiers under oath,

28. In one particularly gruesome episode that óüüüried only one month into their

marriage, Ms. Heard shattered the bones in the tip of Mr. Depp's right middle finger, almost

completely cutting it off, Ms. Heard threw a glass ·vodka bottle at Mr. Depp-.one of many

projectiles that she laüñched at him in this and oth.er instances. The bottle shattered as it came

into contact with Mr. Depp's hand, and the broken glass and impact severed and shattered Mr.
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Dep 's finger, Mr. Pcpp s

finger

ha to be surgicatly:e="..===:; â€”;».Ms. Heard then "is;;;;.,n-:;d

false accounts of this i .side .t casting Mr. Depp as the perpetrator of his own injury,

29. Ms, Heard's "" cs'io abuse of Mr. Depp
..,"

=-=d unabated '.."â€”=gbout their 15-

month marriage. Ms. Heard threw dang-r-'s objects at Mr. Uepp, and also kited and punched

him with regularity.

30. ="----'=::"sly, Ms. Heard even'has used ohe of her attacks on Mr, Depp to push her
(

false na â€”.â€”.Ivcthat she is a dnrnesf!c abuse victim, In her false cat ucav'it to obtain a restraining

order against Mr, Depp, Ms, Heard recounted a domestic 'iote»ce incident that occurred between

her and Mr. Depp on April 21, 2016 and reversed the roles, c.~i.â€”..bingthat she was the victim

| when in truth she was the ~e~ > ato.. Ms. Heard falsely claimed that Mr. Depp
„-',,'

attacked her, threw glasses at her, and broke a champagne bottle in their p- '.=--==-=-after her

thirtieth birthday celebration on April 21, 2016. In truth, Ms. Hear --"".gry with Mr, Depp

he was late to her birthday ce! ~~tion due to a business meeting â€” punched Mr. Depp

twice in the face as he lay in bed reading, forcing him to flee their i
.-"."-=-:=- . to avoid further

>'c violence at the hands of Ms. Heard. Mr. Depp's security detail member, Sean Bett (an

18-year veteran of the I.os Angeles County-Sherriffs Dcpa'c.i~at) picked up Mr. Depp

after Ms Heard assaulted him and; i'=.:::c" f!rsH and the aftermath and damage to

Mr. Depp's face. On other occasions â€”after Ms. Heard violently attacked Mr, Depp in

Dec e™ber 2015 â€”Mr. Bett insisted on taking photographs to document the damage to Mr.

Depp's face inflicted by Ms, Heard.

31. Thus, contrary to the false and "c.~ â€”..â€”:-;yimt Ifcatlon in her "Sexual Violence"

op-ed, Ms. Heard was never a victim of donne'!i";ic.once at the hands of Mr. Depp. Ms. Heard

herself is a domestic abuser, who
--' â€”"=-=",': .'.-I' ll-lc acts of ':-".=:-"-: violence against Mr. Depp
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during their marriage, in addition to the decede abuse that she perpetrated against her former

partner.

Ms. Heard's D½psä(é Abitse
A" Agginst Mr. Udtïp Avel'nWe And Have Been

Refered Çùi iüáitely Bý oji NWtral Third-tefty Wl4thfes, and
87 Serve !!anee Videos

32. Ms. Heard did not "[speak] up against sexual violence" as she claimed in her op-

ed. She made false allegations of desc:tie abuse against Mr. Depp to execute her hoax. r

33. The centerpiece of Ms. Heard's false abuse allegations is an incident that she

clairñcd took place around 7:15 pm on Saturday, May 21, 2016 at Mr. Depp's penthouse in the

Eastern Cc!ümhis Building in de-;.:/r;rn Los Angeles. After Ms. Heard lured'Mr. Depp to pick

up personal items from his own pcñtherse, Ms. Heard, sitting on the sofa with her friend, Raquel

Pcññington, and talking on the phone with her friend, i0 Tillett Wright, claimed that Mr, Depp

"grabbed the cell phone, wound up his arm like a ha=han pitcher and threw the cell phone at me

striking my cheek and cye with great fome." Ms. Heard also claimed that Mr. Depp further

battered her face with some "appcsdage of his body" and then used a magnum-sized hottle of

wine to destroy the pcñtheusc, spilling wine, broken glass, and other items around the pen±e=e.

"Penthouse 3 was destroyed"
by Mr. Depp's bottle swinging, claimed Ms. Heard in her sworn

testimony. Her two friends testified accordingly. Ms. Heard used these allegations to obtain a

temporary restraining order against Mr. Depp on May 27, 2016, appeacias in court six days after

the alleged incident with the first appearance of a battered face, ustw!±..t;ding that a litany of

people witnessed her thróüghóüt the week with no injury and building suriciliance videos

similarly showed her uninjured.

34. Mr. Depp, it is worth noting, left Los Angeles for many weeks almost

im-mediately after the alleged incident. And it is also worth noting that t:!!d!:g persaññci
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testiñed under oath that they again feei!itated E!on Musk's nighttims visits to Mr. Depp's
-5

pesthcase to visit Ms. Heard, key-febbing him in and out of the ini!ding proximate to the time

Ms. Heard presented her battered face to the public and the court on May 27, 2016.

35. Mr. Depp has consistently and ancquivecãlly denied Ms. Heard's damcstic abuse

inll--391iens. They also have been refuted conclusively by rüültiple, neutral third-p=ty witnesses.

36. Ms. Heard's friend and neighbor, Isaac Bamch, gave a declem*den that he

.a..æ÷ ia+-ean*ad with Ms. Heard, at close range, without maker, and utterly emarked and

uninjured in the days between May 22 and May 27, 2016. He further stated in his 4' ±a

that on June 3, after cenEenting Ms. Heard about how upset he was at her false abuse

sl4gêtions: "Amber then told me that she did not want anything from Johnny and that it was the

lawyers who were doing all of this."

37. Police went to Mr. Depp's psñthsse on May 21, 2016, immediately after the

incident was alleged to have cccurred. They were dispatched after Ms. Heard's friend, Mr.

Wright, called 911 to report what the police dispatch log dêscri'ues as a "verbal argument only"

between a hus.bsñd and wife. Two officers, who are highly trained in derestic violence, arrived

at the penthõüse shortly after Ms. Heard later claimed that Mr. Depp struck her in the face with a

cell phone, further hit her face, and then "destroyed" his own penthese by rdng!ñg a -gmn-

sized bottle of wine into other objects th-cnghout that ;;n .. 2. Officer Melissa Saenz is a

veteran Los Angeles Police officer who is charged with training other police officers and

personally has respóñded to "over a hedrod" domestic violence calls. Officer Tyler Hadden is a

junior police officer, but focused on domestic vicicace at the police academy and received

extensive training in how to detect that particular crime.
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38. Both Officer Saenz and Officer Hadden testified under oath that they closely

observed Ms. Heard's face in good light on May 21, 2016 and saw no signs of any injury. In the

police officers' face-to-face interactione with-Ms, Heard 5mediately after she supposedly was

struck in the face with a cell phone and then further beaten in the face by Mr. Depp, the police

officers saw no red marks, no bruising, and no s·;;ciling anywhcrc on Ms. Heard's face. Both

Officer Saenz and Officer Hadden also testified under oath that, when they went roo;n to-recin

in the p:ñtheises to investigoto, they saw no broken glass, no spilled wine, and no vende!im or

property damage of any kind. This is in contrast to Ms. Heard's later claim that Mr. Depp

"destroyed"
; n±rse 3 and caused serious, visible injuries to her face. It also directly

centradicts Ms. Heard's friend's :=±key regarding what Ms. Heard's face looked like at that

time: "Just the whole side of her face was like swolled up (sic) and red and puffy . . . and

progressively getting
worse."

39, There was no probable cause to believe that a crime had been committed,

secording to Officer Saenz's testimony, because Ms. Ileard had no injuries and claimed to have

no injuries, and there was no property damage in the pcñthcusc or signs of any siteresties.

40. Mü!tipb people who work professionally in the Bastern Columbia uüilding where

the penthouse is located, and who dd not know Mr. Depp persóñally, also have üñs-i!pcsly

debunked Ms. Heard's claim that her face was injured on May 21, 2016 and that she had any

sign of injury in the six days before May 27, 2016. Three people, the building's conciergc, head

of front desk and head of security, ;nSundly testified under oath about their face-to-face

interactions with Ms. Heard between May 22, 2016 (the day after Ms. Heard claims that Mr.

Depp hit her and struck her in the eye and on the cheek with a cell phone) and May 27, 2016 (the

day Ms. Heard appeered in public and went to court to get a restraining order against Mr. Depp
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with what appeared to be a battered face). Every one of those three people testified under oath

that they saw Ms. Heard up close in the days after the supposed attack and her face was not

injured befbre the day she ±±:d the restraining order against Mr. Depp.
.

41. Cornelius Harrell is a concierge at the Eastern Columbia Building and was

working at the front desk at I pm on the afternoon of Sunday, May 22, 2016. Mr. Harrell saw

Ms. Heard face-te-face that afternoon-less than 24 hours after she claims that she was struck in

the face by a cell phone thrown by Mr. Depp and hit in the face by Mr. Depp.

42. In an interaction that was also captured by the Eastern Columbia Building's

sur=^'"==" cameras and saved, Ms. Heard appresched Mr. Harrell to pick up a package that had

been delivered to her. Ms. Heard accompaW Mr. Harrell to the package room to identify

which package she wanted because more than one had been delivered to her. As they were

looking through her pâckâges, Mr. Harrell and Ms. Heard were inside the package room

together. The package room at the Eastern Cokmbia Buildiñg is "no bigger than a walk-in

closet," so Mr. Harrell had an eppcemity to observe Ms. Heard's face up close, the day after she

claimed she was battered by Mr. Depp in the face.

43. Mr. Harrell testified under oath that, on May 22, 2016, Ms. Heard did not have

any bruises, cuts, scratches, or swelling on her face and that "nothing appeered out of the

ordinary about Ms. Heard's face on May 22,
2016." In fact, Mr. Harrell testified that he was

struck by how "beautiful," "radiant," and "refreshed" Ms. Heard looked, noting that, if she was

wearing any makeup at all, it was
"-' ' -' " Mr. Harrell unequivocally testified that vihen he

was intciâcting one-on-one in close quarters with Ms. Heard on May 22, 2016 for about 8

minutes, that he did not see any evidence to suggest that she had been the victim of domestic

violence the day before. Mr. Harrell does not know Mr. Depp personaHy.
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44. Alejandro Romero also works at the Eastern Columbie Building, ;nanning the

front desk and ñssitedng the security cameras from 4:00 pm to 1:00 am Monday-Friday. Mr.

Romero had "hundreds" of in person interactions with Ms. Heard when she resided in the

penthouse, in Eddi'°:: to Observ©ñg her iiin=- times on surveillance footage captured by

the Eastern C:!=hi: Building's sedurity cameres. Mr. Romero testified under oath about two

specific face-to-face interactions that he had with Ms. Heard in the days after she claimed that

Mr. Depp hit her in the face and struck her cheek and eye with a cell phone that he threw.

45. Mr. Romero testified that on the "Monday or Tuesday"
evening "after the police

were called"-May 23 or 24, 2016-he was approached at the front desk by Ms. Heard and her

friend, Ms. Pennington, who also resided in the p:±eere. Ms. Heard and Ms. Penie‡=

asked Mr. Romero to eccompany them to the pehthouse because they were afraid that someone

had tried to get inside the p=±ose. Mr. Romero discounted this concem because he had been

ser-itering security footage and saw no one trying to access the pcecse. Nevertheless, Mr.

Romero agreed to accompany Ms. Hean! and Ms. Pennington to the penthee and confirm that

it was secure. He left the front desk with Ms. Heard and Ms. Per.ing::;, rode up to the 13th

floor with them, and went inside the pcrdhese with them, Throughout this interantian, Mr.

Romero testified under oath that he had "a full shot" of Ms. Heard's face and "a good visual" of

Ms. Heard's face and saw no bruises, cuts, swelling, or marks of any kind.

46. Mr. Romero interacted with Ms. Heard again on the evening of May 25, 2016

when she came to the front desk to retrieve a key to the penthouse that she had left at the front

desk. Again, in this face-to-face interaction, Mr. Romero testified that he saw no bruises, cuts,

swelling, or marks of any kind on Ms. Heard's face.
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47. Based on his iñ-person inte=t!êr with Ms. Heard, Mr. Romero, who does not

know Mr. Depp pam;=lly, testified under oath that he "couldn't believe" Ms. Heard's domestie

abuse allegations against Mr. Depp because:

It was like - it was like I said, we watchgd ilie n s and we swtheyi tytes. fp I shè
thespi tres and the netti¾ I saw horri as tlilm gonju op, dyllp I obuldni belleye‡
It Wgs I saw her I efäpn. . . . . The picttug 1 aw¼n thcatews lic guidike big
mark on her - on her eyes and her cheek. 4á3 when LaaW her in persqjir didrn seq
anything.

48. Trinity Esparza, the daytime concierge at the Eastern Columbie Building who

works at the front desk from 8:00 am to 4:00 pm Mani.y Friday, echoed Mr. Romero's disbelief

at Ms. Heard's accetmt. Ms. Esparza, who does not know Mr. Depp personally, testified under

oath that she thought that Ms. Heard's allegation that she had been assâülted by Mr. Depp was

"false" because "I saw her several times [in the days after the alleged attack] and 1 didn't see that

[mark] on her face."

49. Ms. Esparza had multiple face-to-face interactions with Ms. Heard in the days

after Ms. Heard claimed that Mr. Depp hit her and struck her in the eye and cheek with a cell

phone. Ms. Esparza saw Ms. Heard in-person on Mcñday, May 23, 2016; Tuesday, May 24,

2016; Wednesday, May 25, 2016; and Friday, May 27, 2016. Ms. Esparza testined under oath

that, when she saw Ms. Heard on the MGñday, Tuesday, and Wcdñcsday after the alleged attack,

Ms. Heard was not wearing makeup and that Ms. Heard had no facial injuries. There were no

bruises or cuts on Ms. Heard's fhee, secerding to Ms. Esparza's testimony. Ms. Esparza testified

under oath that she saw no indicatiGL that Ms. Heard had been hit or struck.

50. Then, on Friday, May 27, 2016, Ms. Esparza testified under oath that Ms. Heard

suddenly ".had a red cut undemeath her right eye and red marks by her eye." Then Ms. Esparza

learned from media reports that Ms. Heard had attaiñcd a domestic violence restraining order
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against Mr. Depp on May 27, 2016. Because Ms. Esparza had seen Ms. Heard so many times

that week without any marks on her face, Ms. Esparza thought "the time didn't add up and so I

was questler.ing . . . the mark on her face and the allegations that were made."

51. Ms. Esparza was so troubled by the sudden apperence of "a mark" on Ms.

Heard's face on the very day that Ms. Heard ±:in:f a restraining order against Mr. Depp-but

six days after the alleged incident-that Ms. Esparza went back and looked at security video

footage and talked to others who worked in the Eastern Columbie Pnilding to see if the "mark"

might have been on Ms. Heard's face earlier. It wasn't.

52. Mr. Romero and Mr. Harrell confirmed to Ms. Esparza that Ms. Heard did not

have any injuries on her face when they interacted with her.

53. Ms. Esparza also did not see the "mark" on Ms. Heard's face when she went back

and revicwed surveillance videos from the days after Ms. Heard claims that Mr. Depp hit her and

struck her in the face with a cell phone that he threw.

i
54. But Ms. Esparza did see smceing else on the sur-eillance video. On a yideo

from the evening of May 24, 2016, three nights after Ms. Heard alleged that she was attacked by

Mr. Depp, Ms. Esparza saw Ms. Heard, her sister, Whitney Heard, and Ms. Heard's friend and

corroborating witness, Ms. Pcññing'or, on the meznnine level of the Eastern Columbia

Building. In the súi voill cc video, Ms. Esparza testified under oath that she saw Whitney.

Heard pretend to punch her sister in the face. Then Ms. Heard, Ms. Penningins, and Whitney

Heard all laughed. Ms. Esparza testified that she thought how Ms. Heard, Ms. Pinnington, and

Whitney Heard were acting on the surveillance video was "wrong," and it only made her

qucat.icn more how Ms. Heard ended up with a "mark" on her face three days later, on Friday,

May 27. Ms. Esparza knew that Mr. Depp had left Los Angeles for work on the day of the
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alleged incident "and he did not return and so I was gestioning how those marks got on her face

on Friday."
Ultimately, Ms. Esparza testified under oath that she was forced to conclude that

"whatcvcz happened to [Ms. Heard's] face did not happen on Saturday [May
21]" as Ms. Heard

had alleged.

55. Ms. Esparza is not the only professional employee of the Eastern Cohtmbie

Building to witness the "fake punch"
video. Brandon Fitt-4, the General Mañagcr of the

Eastern Columbia Building, provided a declaration about it:

One of the surveillance videos, taken the evening of Tuesday, May 24, showed Amber

Heard, her sister Whitney Heard, and her IBend Reluel P.enting:c. entering. the
building's mezzanine. Trhiity Esparza showed me a video at the front desk with a pretend
punch to the face from one of Miss Heard's two companions, and the three of them
laughed hard. They then enter the pentheüse elevator, where Ms. Heard's face was

clearly visible, there were similarly no bruises, cuts, redness, swelling visible on Ms.
Heard's face.

56. Later, in the media firestorm concerning Ms. Heard's domestic abuse allegaticas

against Mr, Depp, Ms. Heard learned that there were media reports stating that people who

worked at the front desk of the Eastern Ce!umbia Building had seen Ms. Heard without any

marks on her face, as indeed was their tstimony. Mr. Patterson, the General Manager of the

Eastern Columbia Building, summarized the testimony of building staff in his own declaration:

Ms. Heard was repeatedly observed in the Eastern Columbia Building in the multiple
days following the alleged assault without bruises, cuts, redness, swelling or any other
injuries to her face. These Observütjóns were made.by people working at the front desk at

the Eastern Columbia Building who interactgd with Ms. Heard in person añd also saw
images of her on the building surveillance cameras.

57. Approximately a week after she made her domestic abuse allegations against Mr.

Depp, Ms. Heard approached Ms. Esparza and Mr. Patterson, and asked the two of them to give

a stement to Ms. Heard's "friend" at People Magazine. Ms. Heard wanted Ms. Esparza and

Mr. Patterson "to help retract the statement that was given to the press stating that the front desk
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had released this information [about seeing Ms. Heard with no injuries to her face] and [Ms.

Heard ] asked if we would clarify it and let them know that we, in fact, would never release that

infermeGñ on any
resident." Mr. Patterson and Ms. Esparza refused to give the statement and

di-ected Ms. Heard to the Eastern Columbia Building's lawyer.

58. Ms. Esparza testified that she was "not cers:÷tabk" with "the otate=cat that [Ms.

Heard] was preposing that [the building] make to People Magnxine, that the building would not

have said they saw [Ms. Heard] without marks on her face" "because that would have been a lie"

as "the front desk did, in fact, see [Ms. Heard] prior to Friday [May 27, 2016] without marks on

her face."

59. The people working at the front desk of the Eastem Columbia Buildir.g did not

see any injuries to Ms. Heard's face because there were no injuries to Ms. Heard's face. Ms.

Heard's alicgaticñs that Mr. Depp's battered her was a poorly executed hoax,

60. The police officers, who responded to the ponthouse on May 21, 2016

immediately after the alfeged attack, saw no signs that Ms. Heard had been hit or struck by a cell

phone or that a -e.s.....-sized bo.ttle of wine had "destroyed" the pcathese because those

things never happened. There was no pretat!s cause to believe a crime had been c:nnitted

because no crime had been committed against Ms. Heard by Mr. Depp.

61. Ms. Heard's demertic vicicase allegaticus against Mr. Depp were false, as is her

partrayal of herself in her "Sexual
Violence" op-ed as a domestic vicicace victim and her

portrayal of Mr. Depp as a domestic violence penetrator and "monster."

Ms. Heard Acted With Actùal.Malice When She Implied In Her üSexual Violeke" Op-Ed

That She Was A Victim Of D;==:i: Abuse At2 The Hanifs Of Mr. nepp

19
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62. Ms. Heard acted with actual malice when she p""" her false and defamatory

"Sexual Violence" op-ed and implied that she was a victim of de-+ a abuse at the hands of Mr.

Depp.

63. Ms. Heard knew that she was not the domestic abuse victim, but the domestic

abuser.

64. Ms. Heard knew that her derñ=± abuse allegations against Mr. Depp were false

and that she leveled them and enlisted her friends to act as surrogatas for her lies, as part of an

elaborate hoax to generate positive publicity for herself.

65. Ms. Heard also knew that her elaborate hoax worked: as a result of her false

c"cgctier.s against Mr. Depp, Ms. Heard became a darling of the #MeToo movement, was the

first actmss named a Human Rights C!--n;!n of the United Nations Human Rights Office, was

appointed ambassador on women's rights at the Ammican Civil Liberties Union, and was hired

by L'Oréal Paris as its global spokesperson.

66. Because of the past success that her false domestic abuse allegativrs against Mr.

Depp had brought her, Ms. Heard revived the false allegatior.a to prersete her new movie.
..

67, A;·rs:, Ms. Heard's first leading role in a big-budget studio film, pr'emiered in

theatres across the United States (and in Virginia) on December 21, 2019. The movie ended up

making over $1 billion at the box office globally.

68. Tellingly, just days before the premicrê, Heard published her "Sexual Violence"

op-ed with its false implication that she was a domestic abuse victim at the hands of Mr. Depp on

Deccreber 18, 2019 in the Washington Post's online edition and on December 19, 2019 in the

Washington Post's hüidúvgf edition. The op-ed in the WeM tan Post's online edition was

scccr;±d by a picture of Ms. Heard on the red carpet at 2;==='s Los Angeles premicrc.
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Mr. Depp s Rç:±:‡!:n And Career Suffer As A Result Of Ms. Heard's
False And Defamate-y Op-Ed

69. As a result of Ms. Heard's false domestic abuse a"cgeder.a, Mr. Depp's

reputation and career custained immense damage.

70. Ms. Heard, an actress herself, is well aware of the negative effect that false

domestic abuse allegations have on Mr. Depp's career.

71. Mr. Depp lost roles in movies because of the false allegatiüns that Ms. Heard

made against him. When Mr. Depp was cast in
films,'

there were public outcries for the

filmmakers to recast his roles.

72. Mr. Depp endured the public scom caused by Ms. Heard's false domestic abuse

aimedcas for more than two years. But he was weatheritig the stonn and had a 2"ceessh! film

release in Neveinbei 2019. In fact, that movie was still playhig on screens across Virginia when

Ms. Heard revived the false domestie abuse allegations by p±E±ing her "Sexual Violence" op-

ed in the Washington Post,

73. The reaction to Ms. Heard's fal,se and defr_etery op-ed was swift and severe.

Just two days after the op-ed appeared in the Wa:htngton Post's online edition, Disney publicly

announced that Mr. Depp would no longer be a part of the Pirates of the Caribbean Esschise.

Mr. Depp's turn as Captain Jack Sparrow in the Pirates of the Caribbean films is one of Mr.

Depp's most iconic roles, and generated billions of dollars for Disriey. Nevertheless, he was

denied an opportunity to reprise that role immediately on the heels of Ms. Heard's false and

defamatory op-ed.

COUNT ONE-DEFAMATION FOR STATEMENTS IN MS. HEARD'S DECEMBER

18, 2018 OP-ED IN THE ONLINE EDITION OF THE WASHINGTONPOST
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74. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each of the forcgcing paragraphs as if set forth

fully herein.

75. Ms. Heard publishod the "Sexual Violence" op-ed on the December 18, 2018.

i
The article was published to a wüddwidc âüdicñce on the Washington Post's website. A true

and correct copy of the online edition of the "Sexual Violence" op-ed is eitâehed hereto and

incorporâ‡6d by reference as Exhibit A.

76. The "Sexual Violence" op-ed ccat:!::d the following false and defametery

statements conceming Mr..Depp:

* "Amber Heard: 1 spoke up against sexual violence - and faced our culture's wrath.
That has to change."

• "fliùit twdygagtttgoi,1 gcpp)q4pilblin figure reprëf n ng ds;ñcstic abuse, and I felt
(110fúll foN«øfhec0littr ¼:wran or weiñät #1 s eák out."

• "I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how E-'±"--= protect men
accused of abuse."

* "I write this as a woman who had to changet my dione nitinterwé6kly b#cïnpp I was

getting eath (1î1;e Wr)thonthsvLtàrely len myspar(nkelyâìîdtheli I dit!, I wA,v
pursued I y cliftern rotiég brid phötaphsigrä on foot; on nfotorcye s and in farse
TABI &qutigts th lio$ioS pidfurnssúf nie spun them in a negative lights I felt as
thou h 4 we pn trial in Wie Upurt öf jiublic.oliinino and my life and liÿë!iliced

ddpolided.onkyriad jpdgnients ar beyond my
control"

77. These statcmcats are of and conceming Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard's former

d and she publicly (and falsely) accused him of domestic abuse in May 2016. Moreover,

Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in these stateman% and those who know Mr. Depp or

who read the "Sexual Violence" op-ed understood.these statements to be about Mr. Depp,

78. These statements, which imply that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic

violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:

22

FILED: NEW YORK COUNTY CLERK 05/10/2021 03:53 PM INDEX NO. 154545/2021

NYSCEF DOC. NO. 26 RECEIVED NYSCEF: 05/10/2021



!

a. Mr. Depp did not commit "domestie abuse" or "sexual vicicñcs" against Ms.

Heard. Ms. Heard's allegatian that Mr. Depp vic1cntly attacked her oil May 21,

2016 has been refated conclusively by police, neutral third-party witnesses, and

87 newly obtained surveillance camera videos.

b. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domesdo vicicace; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms.

Heard was arrested for domestic violence against her former de est'c partner in

Depp, s e f which sh nfe t u er on

79. The s ñtW danger of hijury to Mr. Depp's reputge from Ms, Heard's false

statements is readily appent. Such statcmcata would tend to so harm the reputden of another

as to lower him in the estimation of the c:rra'ÿ or to deter third persons from assed-ling or

dealing with him.

80. By ;: !!±ing these false statements, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp's

reputation.

81. At the time of publication, Ms. Heard knew these statements were false.

82. Ms. Heard's false sistemcate are defamatory per se because they impute to Mr.

Depp the commission of a crime involving moral t-;!t:d: for which Mr. Depp, if the charge

was true, could be indicted and pri±:1 Moreover, Ms. Heard's false etate-senM prejudice Mr.

Depp in his profession as a film actor. Mr. Depp therefore is entitled to presumed damüges.

83. As a direct and proximate result of these false statements by Ms. Heard, Mr. Depp

has suffered damages, ine!uding, tnter alia, injury to his re¡-±i!=, harm to his ability to carry

on his profession, embanessment, her"! tie-
., and si9tiend distress, in an amount to be

determined at trial.
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84. Ms. Heard's actions were r^'i:!:::, willful, and wanton, and cvidence a

conscious disregard for Mr. Depp's rights. Accordingly, punitive darsagca are appropriate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respcct^üIy requests that the Court enter an award in Plaintiff's

favor and against Defendant, as follows:

(1) sw-sding Mr. Depp compensatory damages of not less than $ 50,000,000, or in

such additional amount to be proven at trial;

(2) awarf!:; Mr. Depp punitive damages to the maximum extent permitted by the

laws of this C^r-
sun, but not less than $ 350,000;

(3) awarding Mr. Depp all of his expeñses and costs, iñcinding
attorneys'

fees; and

(4) granting such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

COUNT TWO--DEF4|$5ATIOÑ#QR$TATEMENTS IN MS.115%) S EÖEMBER

19, 201841LÈD.TN THE ÃÍÑfli$5$QÑÚE TliE WMHÏÑ G†ÒÑf032Y

85. Plaintiff repeats and re-alleges each of the f:=going paragraphs as if set forth

fully herein.

86. Ms. Heard published the "Sexual Violence" op-ed in the December 19, 2018

hardcopy edition of the Washington Post, which the Wñ.-hh:;-::; Post distributes to readers in

Virginia, across the nation, and around the world, A true and correct copy of the hardcopy

edition of the "Sexual Violence" op-ed is âttached hereto and incorporated by reference as

Exhibit B,

87. The "Sexual Violence" op-ed cññtained the following false and dafametery

statements concerning Mr. Depp:

• "Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence - and faced our culture's wrath.
That has to change."
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"Tlich two yeäis t gø,.) lyecame a pshlig figure repre.senting domestic abuse, and I felt
thefttil ferbe f uúruihore.ts wrath for.womøn who speak out."

"I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how im±±- protect men
accused of abuse."

"I write this as a woman who had to change my ;phone m@bp w9e y goatiseTwis

géñilgW6hýüiWat& Fohmetths tratrolý leftgjy apaptmeg4ñdnwhe 4d s
4.d 6âjisdfa d 6%W @d photographer on feW, oar,Mor¼ycles ids c sy

o tic 6âlM.pfätt@s pF1994p)p (1jýïn hi A }ïegntite lipit3 L f It:qs;
t 10u T5vn n tfishin. linc6ú$0f.ydblic opipi p - äñd thy lifd Rhdlksilhood

eyehdpd og myrindj9dpuéí(¼fàYbeyond my
control."

88. These statements are of and concerning Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard's former

and and she publicly (and fhisely) accused him of domestic abuse in May 2016. Moreover,

Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in these statements, and those who know Mr. Depp or

who read the "Sexual Violence" o >-ed understeed these statements to be about Mr. Depp.

89. These statemcats, which imply that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic

violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:

a. Mr. Depp did not commit "domestic abuse" or "sexual violence" against Ms.

Heard. Ms. Heard's allcgation that Mr. Depp vigicady attacked her on May 21,

2016 has been refuted conclusively by police, neutral third-pedy witnesses, and

87 newly obtained surveillance camera videos.

b. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestic violence; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms.

Heard was arrested for domestic violence against her former partner in 2009. Ms.

Heard also œmmitted múItiplc acts of domestic violence against Mr. Depp.

90. The subststial danger of injury to Mr. Depp's reputatics from M s. Heard's false

stêtements is readily apparcñt. Such stateinents would tend to so harm the reputation of another

as to lower him in the estimation of the ec=rs:!‡y or to deter third persons from asseciating or

dealing with him.
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91. By puh!ishing these false statemcats, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp's

reputation,

92. At the time of publication, Ms. Heard knew these statements were false.

93. Ms. Heard's false statements are def=e sy per se because they impute to Mr.

Depp the commiseon of a crime invoh-ing moral tu-pitade for which Mr. Depp, if the charge

was true, could be indicted and püñishcd. Moreover, Ms. tIeard's false statements prejudice Mr.

Depp in his professicñ as a film actor. Mr. Depp therefore is entitled to presumed damages,

94. As a direct and proximate result of these fNlse etetements by Ms. Heard, Mr. Depp

has suffered damagen íñeluding, inter alla, injmy to his re'puta*½n, harm to his ability to carry

on his profession, embarrassment, !==!!!:tion, and :::t!::d distress, in an amount to be

determined at trial.

95. Ms. Heard's actions were mâ!icious, willful, and wanton, and evidence a

conscious di=egard for Mr. Depp's rights. Accordingly, punitive damages are appropdate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respecefñ!!y requests that the Court enter an award in Plaintiffs

favor and against Defendant, as follows:

(1) awarding Mr. Depp compensatory damages of not less than $ 50,000,000, or in

such additional amount to be proven at trial;

(2) a..asding Mr. Depp punitive damagca to the maximum extent pe-n-dued by the

laws of this C:==cnwealth, but not less than $ 350,000;

(3) awarding Mr. Depp all of his expenses and costs, iñcinding
attomcys'

fees; and

(4) granting such other and further relief as the Court deems appropriate.

COUNT THREE--DEÈAMATION FOR STATEnfENTŠMM$ HEARD*S OP-ED
WNICH HEAltD REfÚBLISHED WHEN SHE TWEETED A LINK

TO THE OP-ED ON DECEMBER 19, 2018
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96. Plaintiff repeats and rc-alleges each of the forcgaiñg paragraphs as if set forth

fully herein.

97. Ms. Heard published the "Sexual Violence" op-ed in the December 18, 201B

online edition of the Wa:Mngt::: Post. The following day, Ms. Heard tweeted a link to the op-

ed. A true and correct copy of Ms. Heard's tweet of the link to the "Sexual Violence" op-ed is

attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit C.

98. The "Sexual Violence" op-ed c-ntained the fo!!cwiñg false and defa=atory

statements c6ncerning Mr. Depp:

• "Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence - and faced our culture's wrath.
That has to change."

• "Then two years ago, I became a public figure representing derestie abuse, and I felt
the full force of our culture's wrath for women who speak out."

"I had the rare vantage point of seeing, in real time, how insnt:G---e protect men
accused of abuse."

* "I write this as a woman who had to change my phone number weekly because I was

getting death threats. For months, 1 rarely left my apartment, and when I did, I was
pursued by camera drones and photokãphprs on foot, on motorcycles and in cars.
Tabloid outlets that posted pietures of me spun them in a negative light. I felt as
though I was on trial in the court of public opinion - and my life and livelihood
depended on myriad judgments far beyond my

control."

99. These statements are of and concerning Mr. Depp, as he is Ms. Heard's former

husband and she püblicly (and falsely) accused him of domestic abuse in May 2016, Moreover,

Ms. Heard intended to refer to Mr. Depp in these statemants, and those who know Mr. Depp or

who read the "Sexual Violence" op-ed undesteed these statements to be about Mr. Depp.

100. These statements, which imply that Ms. Heard was the victim of domestic

[ violence at the hands of Mr. Depp, are false:
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a. Mr. Depp did not commit "dames tic abuse" or "sexual visicace" against Ms.

Heard. Ms. Heard's allegaticñ that Mr. Depp violently ettacked her on May 21,

2016 has been refuted conclusively by police, multiple, neutral third-party

witnesses, and 87 newly übtaiñcd sm veiEmice camera videos.

b. Ms. Heard is not a victim of domestió violence; rather, she is a perpetrator. Ms.

Heard was arrested for derestic violence against her former partner in 2009. Ms.

Heard also ces:!tted meldple acts of domestic violence against Mr. Depp.

101. The substantial danger of injury to Mr. Depp's :;:t:±!:: from Ms. Heard's false

...-.-.ts is readily apliarent. Such statcmerds would tend to so harm the re;:::t!:: of another

as to lower him in tho est'manes of the ecss::!±y or to deter third persons from asscciadñg or

dealing with him.

102. By p±!!±!:g these false st±=-ta, Ms. Heard caused harm to Mr. Depp's

reputation.

103. At the time of publication, Ms. Heard knew these staterñcats were false.

104. Ms. Heard's false et3tcñ cats are defamatory per se because they impute to Mr.

Depp the ccrr! !on of a crime involving moral turpitude for which Mr. Depp, if the charge

was true, could be iñdicted and punjshed. Morcover, Ms. Heard's false statements prejudice Mr.

Depp in his profession as a film actor. Mr. Depp therefore is entitled to presumed dañage.

105. As a direct and prezimate result of thede false statements by Ms. Heard, Mr. Depp

has suffered damagca, including, inter alia, injury to his reputatics, harm to his ability to carry

on his profession, embarrassment,
t:n!"

e. and cmcticña! distress, in an amount to be

determined at trial.
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106. Ms. Heard's actions were rsalicicus, willful, and wanton, and evidence a

conscious disregard for Mr. Depp's rights. Acc=d!:gly,·püñitive damages are appropriate.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respect".dly requests that the Court enter an award in Plaintiffs

favor, and against Defendant, as follows:

(1) awgding Mr. Depp comp==iery damages of not less than $50,000,000, or in

such additional amount to be proven at trial;

(2) awarding Mr. Depp püñitive drusages to the maximum extent pc=itted by the

laws of this C-cr":asith, but no less than $350,000;

(3) awarding Mr. Depp all expenses and costs, is:!sdiñg
attorneys'

fees; and

(4) such other and further relief as the Court deems :;;r;±t:.

JURY TRIAL WENinNU

Plaintiff John C. Depp, II hereby
ds--ª- a jury trial on all issues so triable.

Dated: March 1, 2019

Brittany Whitesell Biles (pro hac vice applicat'un forthcoming)
STEIN MITCHELL BEATO & MISSNER LLP
901 Fifteenth Street, N.W.
Suite 700
Washington, D.C. 20005
Telephone: (202) 601-1602
Facshnile: (202) 296-8312
Email: bbil .icinesitchell.com
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Facsimite: (202) 296-8312
Emath bbi!ee et±=i'ohell.com

Adam R. Waldman
THE BNDP4YORLAW PIRM, P.C.
1775 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Suite 350
Washington, DC 20006

itéõtMik Q. Cliew (VSB) 291 13
EllioÙ. WeÏ¼.g=ten (pro Nac vice --"^"'^ ha- g)
BROWN RUDNICK LLP
601 Thirteenth Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20005
Telephone: (202) 536-1700
Faosimile: (202) 536-1701
Email: bshmgfhe:r phidinoni.

Counsel for Plaintiff John C. Depp, H
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3/1/2019 AmberHeardon Twitter:"Today) publishedthisop-edIn theWastil::g:c:;Postaboutthewomenwho arechenne!!ngtheirrageaboutviole...

Amber Heard

@realamberheard

Today I published this op-ed in the

Washington Post about the women who

are channeling their rage about violence

and inequality into political strength

despite the price of coming forward.

From college campuses to Congress,

we're balancing the scales.

Opinion | Amber Heard: I spoke up against sexual violence - and fa...

We have en opening now to bolster and build institutions protective of
women.Let's not ignore it.

washingtonpost.com

1:28 PM - 19 Dec 2018

1,292 Retweets 3,556 Likes .

128 O 1.3K 3,6K

Amber Heard @realamberheard • 19 Dec 2018 v
I'm hsi.Gred to announce my role as an ALLU ambassador on women's rights.

https://twitter.com/res:.T.5 th::restatus/10755032795232424ü6iiang=en 1/1
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 2nd day of February 2021, I caused copies of the

foregoing to be served via email (per written agreement between the Parties) on the following:

Elaine Charlson Bredehoft (VSB No. 23766)
Carla D. Brown (VSB No. 44803)
Adam S. Nadelhaft (VSB No. 91717)
David E. Murphy (VSB No. 90938)
CHARLSON BREDEHOFT COHEN & BROWN,
P.C.

11260 Roger Bacon Dr., Suite 201

Reston, VA 20190

Phone: 703-318-6800

Fax: 703-318-6808

ebredehoft@cbcblaw.com

cbrown@cbchlaw.com

anadelhaft@cbcblaw.com

dmurphy@cbcblaw.com

A. Benjamin Rottenborn (VSB No. 84796)
Joshua R. Treece (VSB No. 79149)
WOODS ROGERS PLC

10 S. Jefferson Street, Suite 1400

P.O. Box 14125

Roanoke, Virginia 24011

Telephone: (540) 983-7540

brottenborn@woodsrogers.com

jtreece@woodsrogers.com

Counsel for Defendant Amber Laura Heard

B GCwo
®

Benjamin G. Chew
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brownrudnick
BENJAMIN G.C=

FILED
directdial: 202.536.1785 ClVll

INR/qbchew@brownnednickmm

2 AM tf :47

February 2, 2021 H

FA IRFA X
COURT

VIA HAND DELIVERY

The Honorable John T. Frey, Clerk

Fairfax County Circuit Court

4110 Chain Bridge Road, Suite 320

Fairfax, Virginia 22030

RE: John C. Depp, H v. Amber Laura Heard

Case No. CL-2019-0002911

Foreign Subpoenas: ACLU Foundation, Ben Wizner, and Anthony Romero

Dear Mr. Frey,

Please find enclosed two copies each of six foreign subpoenas of third-party witnesses pursuant

to Virginia Code Section 8.01-412.10 and New York Civil Practice Law and Rules Section

3119. The enclosed subpoenas have been issued in accordance with both Acts and the reciprocal

privileges included therein.

The enclosed subpoenas will be served by private process server. Please file one copy of each

subpoena with the Court's papers in this case and issue one copy of each subpoena in

accordance with the Uniform Interstate Deposition and Discovery Act. Also enclosed is a check

for the Court's fees covering all six subpoenas. Thank you for your assistance.

Regards,

BROWN RUDNICK LLP

Benjamin G. Chew

Enclosures

Brown Rudnick LLP 1brownrudnick.com I 601 Tiliriêêiit:1 Street NW, Suite 600, Wash?ñgten. DC, 20006 11202.536.1700
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